
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK
- - - - - - - - - - - - - x

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
INFORMATION

-v-
Sl 09 Cr. 367 (JGK)

MARK BLOOM,

Defendant.

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - x

COUNT ONE
(Securities Fraud)

The United States Attorney charges:

Relevant Persons and Entities

1. At all times relevant to this Information, MARK

BLOOM, the defendant, was the sole owner of North Hills

Management, LLC ("North Hills Management" or "NHM"), a limited

liability corporation organized under the laws of New York State.

2. At all times relevant to this Information, North

Hills Management was the sole General Partner of North Hills LP

("North Hills Fund" or "NHF"), a limited partnership organized

under the laws of New York State. At all times relevant to the

Information, MARK BLOOM, the defendant, used various locations in

New York State to conduct the business of NHF and NHM, including

his various residences in New York, New York.

The Scheme to Defraud

3. From at least as early as July 2001 through at

least in or about February 2009, MARK BLOOM, the defendant,

perpetrated a scheme to defraud the investors of NHF by



soliciting millions of dollars of funds under false pretenses,

failing to invest investors' funds as promised, and

misappropriating and converting investors' funds to BLOOM's own

benefit and the benefit of others without the knowledge or

authorization of the investors.

4. To execute the scheme, MARK BLOOM, the defendant,

solicited clients to invest with NHF based upon, among other

things, his representation that NHF would be a "fund of funds,"

that is, that it would invest in different hedge funds and

management investment vehicles, with a goal of minimizing the

risk of the stock market and achieving a 12 percent annual

return. For example, in a Private Placement Memorandum (the

"PPM") dated July 27, 2001, which BLOOM sent or caused to be sent

to prospective investors, BLOOM represented that NHF would invest

with money managers who had "proven historical performance," and

that substantially all of the securities selected would be

"readily marketable." The PPM stated that NHF's goal was "for

meaningful diversification of strategies and money managers whose

performance will be independent of one another," and that a

principal advantage of investing in NHF was that the General

Partner would construct "a balanced mix of investment

approaches." In the PPM, BLOOM further stated that NHM, as the

General Partner, had a "fiduciary duty to the Limited Partners to

exercise good faith and fairness in all dealings affecting the

Partnership." Pursuant to the PPM and the partnership agreement
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which BLOOM and the investors signed t NHM t as the General

Partner t was entitled to collect 20 percent of all profits made

and an annual management fee of 1 percent of assets under

management to cover operational expenses.

5. Based upon the representations in the PPM and the

partnership agreement t and other assurances provided by MARK

BLOOM t the defendant t investors provided millions of dollars to

BLOOM to invest in NHF. These investments were deposited into

the operating account of NHF at a bank in New York t New York.

6. At all times relevant to this Information t MARK

BLOOM t the defendant t sent or caused to be sent to the investors

monthly account statements t which purported to show the balance

in their capital accounts at NHF and positive returns. The

monthly statements did not itemize how NHFts assets were

allocated or identify the money managers who had been retained by

NHF.

7. Between at least in or about July 2001 and in or

about February 2009 t MARK BLOOM t the defendant t diverted at least

$20 million from the NHF operating account t which he converted to

his own use without disclosing the fact that he was doing so to

the NHF investors. That amount was far in excess of the

management fees and shares of profits to which BLOOM was entitled

pursuant to the PPM and the partnership agreement. As part of

his schemet BLOOM transferred these funds into the operating

account of NHM t and then made disbursements from NHMts operating
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account for his own personal expenditures and/or transferred the

investor funds to his personal bank account. BLOOM used the

investor funds to pay for, among other things, at least $2.3

million in renovations to apartments owned by BLOOM and his wife

in New York, New York, and a house in Westhampton Beach, New

York; at least $750,000 in art; at least $600,000 in jewelry; and

hundreds of thousands of dollars for parties, travel, personal

services, and clothing.

8. In or about January 2004, MARK BLOOM, the

defendant, entered into a referral agreement (the "PAAM Referral

Agreement") with a money management company called the

Philadelphia Alternative Asset Management Company ("PAAM"), which

operated a commodities trading pool known as the Philadelphia

Alternative Asset Fund ("PAAF"). Under the PAAM Referral

Agreement, BLOOM received one third of all fees collected by PAAM

(the "Referral Fee"), for any investment referred by BLOOM to

PAAM. Between in or about February 2004 and January 2005, BLOOM

invested more than $17 million of NHF's assets in PAAF, which

represented more than half of NHF's capital. Between in or about

2004 and in or about July 2005, NHF became the largest investor

in PAAF, and BLOOM received approximately $1.6 million in

commissions from PAAM. Nevertheless, BLOOM did not disclose the

PAAM Referral Agreement to the NHF investors.

9. In addition to failing to disclose his financial

interest in PAAF and PAAM, MARK BLOOM, the defendant, did not
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disclose to the NHF investors that the majority of their assets

were invested with a single money manager, despite the fact that

such a concentration of assets in a single investment was

inconsistent with the representations made by BLOOM in the PPM

that NHF would provide investors with a "meaningful

diversification of strategies and money managers whose

performance will be independent of one another," and that BLOOM

would construct "a balanced mix of investment approaches."

10. In or about June 2005, the United States Commodity

Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC") instituted an emergency

action in Philadelphia against PAAM and its President, alleging

that PAAM and its President had engaged in fraud, including the

misappropriation of investor funds (the "PAAM Litigation") .

Pursuant to that action, PAAM's assets - including those of PAAF

- were frozen and a receiver was appointed to locate and

distribute PAAM assets to defrauded investors. As a result, MARK

BLOOM, the defendant, disclosed to the NHF investors that they

were heavily invested in PAAF, and that the PAAF funds had been

frozen because of the CFTC action.

11. After MARK BLOOM, the defendant, made this

disclosure, several NHF investors sought to redeem their

investments from NHF. BLOOM stalled the investors, citing the

illiquidity of the PAAF funds as a reason why he was unable to

honor redemption requests. In fact, BLOOM was unable to honor

the redemption requests in large part because BLOOM had diverted
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to his own personal use the vast majority of the NHF assets that

were not invested in PAAF.

12. From in or about July 2005 up to at least in or

about December 2008, MARK BLOOM, the defendant, wrote to NHF

investors to inform them of the progress of the PAAM Litigation

and of scheduled distributions from the PAAM receiver. However,

BLOOM failed to disclose to these investors that, in or about

September 2006, BLOOM had sold 100 percent of NHF's rights to any

PAAM distributions to a third party in exchange for an up-front

paYment of several million dollars and a portion of any future

distributions after the third party recovered its investment. In

fact, BLOOM continued to send monthly statements to NHF investors

that misrepresented the value of the investors' NHF capital

accounts by failing to reflect the third party's claim on any

future distributions from the PAAM receiver to NHF.

13. In or about 2007 and 2008, MARK BLOOM, the

defendant, solicited approximately $4 million from new investors

in newly created so-called uClass C" shares in NHF. Among other

things, BLOOM falsely represented to these investors that NHF

would invest their funds with hedge funds.; In fact, contrary to

the representation he had made to them, BLOOM used these new

investors' funds to honor redemption requests of some of the

original NHF investors.

14. In or about 2007 and 2008, some of the original

NHF investors insisted that MARK BLOOM, the defendant, provide an
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accounting of NHF funds that had not been invested with PAAF. In

or about November 2008, BLOOM acknowledged to several of the

original NHF investors that NHF had no assets other than the PAAF

investments and "notes payable" received from the General

Partner, NHM. The "notes payable" represented loans that NHF

made to NHM, which purported to be payable on demand and accrue 8

percent interest. In truth and in fact, BLOOM, who controlled

both NHF and NHM, never demanded that the notes be repaid. BLOOM

further acknowledged to these original investors that he had

borrowed approximately $10 million from NHF to, among other

things, purchase a personal apartment in New York City.

15. Up until his arrest on or about February 25, 2009,

MARK BLOOM, the defendant, sent correspondence to NHF investors

which misrepresented the financial condition of NHF. For

example, on or about January 30, 2009, BLOOM sent an email to an

investor who had been requesting a full redemption for several

years. In that email, BLOOM apologized for the delay in making

the requested redemption and stated that things were "rather

complicated with poor liquidity," as a result of issues beyond

his control. Contrary to these representations, as BLOOM well

knew, NHF's illiquidity was due largely to the fact that BLOOM

had borrowed, and spent, millions of dollars of NHF's assets and

was unable to repay the loans.
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statutory Allegation

16. From at least July 2001 through in or about

February 2009, in the Southern District of New York and

elsewhere, MARK BLOOM, the defendant, unlawfully, willfully, and

knowingly, directly and indirectly, by the use of means and

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, the mails, and the

facilities of national securities exchanges, in connection with

the purchase and sale of securities, did use and employ

manipulative and deceptive devices and contrivances, in violation

of Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 240.10b-5, by:

(a) employing devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (b)

making untrue statements of material facts and omitting to state

material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in

light of the circumstances under which they were made, not

misleading; and (c) engaging in transactions, acts, practices,

and courses of business which operated and would operate as a

fraud and deceit upon persons.

(Title 15, United States Code, Sections 78j (b) and 78ff;
Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 240.10b-5;

Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.)

COUNT TWO
(Mail Fraud)

The United States Attorney further charges:

17. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through

15, above, are hereby repeated, realleged and incorporated by

reference as if fully set forth herein.
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18. From at least as early as in or about July 2001

through in or about February 2009, MARK BLOOM, the defendant,

caused investors in NHF to be sent by mail, among other things,

false monthly account statements that purported to show the value

of their capital accounts at NHF. These statements were sent

through the United States Postal Service.

19. From at least in or about July 2001 through in or

about February 2009, in the Southern District of New York and

elsewhere, MARK BLOOM, the defendant, unlawfully, willfully, and

knowingly, having devised and intending to devise a scheme and

artifice to defraud, and for obtaining money and property by

means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and

promises, for the purpose of executing such scheme and artifice

and attempting so to do, did place and cause to be placed in post

offices and authorized depositories for mail matter, matters and

things to be sent and delivered by the United states Postal

Service, and did deposit and cause to be deposited matters and

things to be sent and delivered by private and commercial

interstate carriers, and did take and receive therefrom such

matters and things, and did knowingly cause to be delivered, by

mail and such carriers according to the directions thereon, and

at the places at which they were directed to be delivered by the

persons to whom they were addressed, such matters and things, to

wit, on or about March 11, 2008, BLOOM sent and caused to be sent

and delivered via the United States Postal Service an account
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statement to an investor in Las Vegas, Nevada which

misrepresented the value of the investor's capital account in

NHF.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341 and 2.)

COUNT THREE
(Wire Fraud)

The United States Attorney further charges:

20. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through

15, above, are hereby repeated, realleged and incorporated by

reference as if fully set forth herein.

21. From at least in or about July 2001 through in or

about February 2009, in the Southern District of New York and

elsewhere, MARK BLOOM, the defendant, unlawfully, willfully, and

knowingly, having devised and intending to devise a scheme and

artifice to defraud, and for obtaining money by means of false

and fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises, did

transmit and cause to be transmitted by means of wire and radio

communication in interstate and foreign commerce, writings,

signs, signals, pictures, and sounds for the purpose of executing

such scheme and artifice, to wit, BLOOM caused an investor to

wire approximately $1 million on or about July 30, 2007 from the

investor's bank account in Atlanta, Georgia, into the NHF

operating account at a bank in New York, New York.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.)
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COUNT FOUR
(Money Laundering)

The United States Attorney further charges:

22. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through

15, above, are hereby repeated, realleged and incorporated by

reference as if fully set forth herein.

23. From at least in or about July 2001 through in or

about February 2009, in the Southern District of New York and

elsewhere, MARK BLOOM, the defendant, in an offense involving and

affecting interstate and foreign commerce, unlawfully, willfully,

and knowingly engaged and attempted to engage in and cause others

to engage in a monetary transaction in criminally derived

property that was of a value greater than $10,000 and was derived

from specified unlawful activity, to wit, BLOOM transferred

investor funds to his own personal account to, among other

things, renovate and decorate his homes in New York, New York and

a property at 12 Michaels Way, Westhampton Beach, New York, and

purchase millions of dollars in jewelry and art, including

artwork for which BLOOM sent a check for $150,000 to an art

dealer in New York, New York, on or about October 7, 2004.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1957 and 2.)
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COUNT FIVE
(Corruptly Endeavoring to Obstruct and Impede the
Due Administration of the Internal Revenue Laws)

The United States Attorney further charges:

Background

24. From in or about July 2001 until November 2003,

MARK BLOOM, the defendant, was a Certified Public Accountant and

a partner at BDO Seidman, LLP, a major international accounting

firm (UBDO"), which maintained its headquarters in Chicago,

Illinois, and also maintained offices in various other United

States cities, including New York, New York. In or about early

1998, a co-conspirator not named as a defendant herein, who was

then the head of BDO's national tax practice, and who later

became BDO's Chief Executive Officer (the UCEO"), formed a group

devoted to designing, marketing, and implementing high-fee tax

strategies for individual clients, often with law firms,

investment firms, and financial institutions. Initially called

the UTax Sales Executive Group" and UTax Products Group," the

group's name was changed to the UTax Solutions Group"

(hereinafter uTSG") in or about October 1999. The strategies

marketed by the TSG included tax shelters that could be used by

wealthy clients to eliminate or substantially reduce taxes on

significant income or gains. The tax shelters generally

generated tax benefits - primarily losses or gain eliminations

that far outweighed the costs to enter into the tax shelters.

BDO touted the tax shelters internally as uvalue-added products"
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whereby fees far in excess of the normal hourly billing rate

would be charged.

25. From 1998 through October 2000, the CEO led the

TSG along with two other tax partners from BDO's New York, New

York office. From October 2000 until October 2003, the CEO and

one of those partners led the TSG.

26. The TSG engaged in the design, marketing, and

implementation of a number of different tax shelters for BDO

clients, including several variations of a tax shelter known as

the Short Option Strategy ("SOS") tax shelter, one of which was

done with the Chicago office of the Jenkens & Gilchrist law firm

and a second with an investment firm located in New York, New

York. Another of the tax shelters designed, marketed, and

implemented by the TSG was known as the Distressed Debt shelter,

done with an investment firm located in Greenwich, Connecticut

("Company A") .

27. In 2001, MARK BLOOM, the defendant, who had

previously been a partner at BDO, was recruited to return to it

by the CEO for the express purpose of joining the TSG. In

exchange for doing so, the CEO guaranteed BLOOM a $1 million

annual compensation package. BLOOM was to and did utilize his

extensive social and business contacts with wealthy individuals

in the New York City area for the purpose of attempting to sell

BDO's tax shelter products to them.
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28. MARK BLOOM, the defendant, utilized a Distressed

Debt shelter done with Company A to offset his income received in

the years 2001 through 2003.

Statutory Allegations

29. From in or about 2001 through in or about October

2004, in the Southern District of New York and elsewhere, MARK

BLOOM, the defendant, did corruptly obstruct and impede, and

endeavor to obstruct and impede, the due administration of the

Internal Revenue Laws.

Means and Methods of the Corrupt Endeavor to Obstruct and Impede

30. Among the means and methods used by MARK BLOOM,

the defendant, to corruptly obstruct and impede and endeavor to

obstruct and impede the due administration of the Internal

Revenue Laws, were the following:

A. The Promotion of the Fraudulent Tax Shelters

31. TSG members, including MARK BLOOM, the defendant,

marketed a variety of tax shelters, including the SOS tax shelter

with lawyers at the law firm of Jenkens & Gilchrist in Chicago

and with a New York City-based investment firm, and the

Distressed Debt tax shelter with Company A. BLOOM then knew and

understood that the tax shelter products marketed by him, the

TSG, and other members of BDO, were preplanned products designed

to eliminate taxes due and owing by the clients who purchased

them and were not done for investment purposes.
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32. BDO referred clients to Company A for

implementation of the financial transactions used in the

Distressed Debt tax shelters. MARK BLOOM, the defendant, and

others at BDO portrayed the tax shelters to clients as turnkey

products with all-in fees paid to BDO and Company A, with

additional amounts to be paid to the law firms issuing opinion

letters. The law firms issued legal opinion letters concluding

that it was "more likely than not" that the client would prevail

in claiming the tax benefits from the tax shelter if challenged

by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"). BLOOM knew and

understood that the legal opinion letters were intended to be

presented to the IRS in defense of the tax shelter, if and when

the clients were audited, and used not only to undermine the

ability of the IRS to ascertain the clients' true tax

liabilities, but also to undermine the IRS's ability to determine

whether penalties should be imposed. BLOOM also knew and

understood that the opinion letters contained false and

fraudulent representations about the taxpayers' purported motives

for entering into the shelters and about the taxpayers' purported

nontax business purposes in entering into the tax shelters.

33. MARK BLOOM, the defendant, knew and understood

that BDO's tax shelters, including the Distressed Debt tax

shelter, were designed, marketed, and implemented for the sole

purpose of eliminating taxes otherwise due on its clients'

ordinary income and/or capital gains, but were to be falsely
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portrayed to the IRS as investment opportunities for the clients.

BLOOM pitched a number of potential clients on several different

tax shelters being promoted by BDO, knowing full well that the

clients had no investment motive or nontax business purpose in

purchasing the tax shelters.

34. In promoting the Distressed Debt tax shelter, MARK

BLOOM, the defendant, further knew and understood that Company A

maintained two funds of distressed debt, one to be used for the

tax shelters and another to be used for true investments. BLOOM

knew and understood that the quality of the distressed debt used

in the tax shelters was inferior to that used in the true

investment fund and was unlikely to produce economic profits for

the tax shelter clients. BLOOM would not have invested or

recommended investment in the distressed debt fund used for the

tax shelters but for the desire to generate large tax losses.

35. MARK BLOOM, the defendant, further knew and

understood that the consulting agreement used by BDO for its tax

shelters contained a false and fraudulent description of the

nature and scope of the services to be rendered under the

agreement, and deliberately omitted any mention of the purchase

of the tax shelter by the client. In truth and fact, as BLOOM,

other TSG members, and others knew, the services to be rendered

under the consulting agreement and the fees referenced therein

were solely for the implementation of the tax shelter. This was

done so that BDO and its clients could falsely tell the IRS that
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the fees were for services in addition to the tax shelter, and

therefore only a portion of BDO's fees should be counted when

conducting a profitability analysis of the tax shelter.

B. Bloom's Personal False and Fraudulent
Shelter Deductions

36. For the tax years 2001, 2002, and 2003, MARK

BLOOM, the defendant, claimed tax shelter losses on his own U.S.

Individual Income Tax Returns, Forms 1040, from Distressed Debt

tax shelters implemented by Company A. Bloom knew and understood

that in order to claim the losses generated by those tax shelters

there had to be a realistic possibility for economic profit, and

he had to have a nontax business purpose for entering into the

tax shelters. In truth and fact, as BLOOM then and there well

knew, there was no realistic possibility for economic profit, and

BLOOM did not have any genuine investment motive or nontax

business purpose, but rather entered into the tax shelters solely

to generate tax losses to offset ordinary income in the years

2001, 2002, and 2003.

37. For the tax year 2001, MARK BLOOM, the defendant,

willfully filed a false and fraudulent income tax return on which

he claimed a $1,924,111 fraudulent loss derived from a Distressed

Debt tax shelter. For the tax year 2002, BLOOM willfully filed a

false and fraudulent income tax return on which he claimed a

$2,222,299 fraudulent loss derived from a second Distressed Debt

tax shelter. For the tax year 2003, BLOOM willfully filed a
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false and fraudulent income tax return on which he claimed

$1,016,037 in fraudulent losses derived from the Distressed Debt

tax shelter he entered into in the 2002 tax year and a

carryforward loss of $3,024 from the Distressed Debt tax shelter

he entered into in the 2001 tax year.

38. MARK BLOOM, the defendant, further knew and

understood that the tax opinion letters for his personal

Distressed Debt tax shelters contained representations about

BLOOM'S purported investment motives and purported nontax

business purpose in entering into the tax shelters that were

false and fraudulent. BLOOM signed representation letters in

connection with his opinion letters that contained false and

fraudulent representations about his purported investment motives

and purported nontax business purposes for entering into the tax

shelters.

(Title 26, United States Code, Section 7212(a).)

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION
AS TO COUNTS ONE, TWO AND THREE

39. As the result of committing one or more of the

foregoing securities, mail, and wire fraud offenses alleged in

Counts One, Two and Three of this Information, MARK BLOOM, the

defendant, shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to Title

18, united States Code, Section 981(a) (1) (C) and Title 28, United

States Code, Section 2461, all property, real and personal, that

constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to the
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commission of the fraud offenses, including but not limited to

the following:

a. At least $20 million in United States currency, in

that such sum in aggregate is property representing the amount of

proceeds obtained as a result of the charged securities, mail,

and wire fraud offenses;

b. All right, title, and interest in the following

specific property:

1. Any and all funds on deposit in Account No.
500-0002-9769 held at First Republic Bank in
the name of Lauren Bloom;

2. The real property and appurtenances known and
described as 12 Michaels Way, Westhampton
Beach, New York;

3. The real property and appurtenances known and
described as 45 Ocean Avenue, Unit 81,
Monmouth Beach, New Jersey;

4. The real property and appurtenances known and
described as 5032 Rose Hill Drive, Apt. 3
104, Boynton Beach, Florida;

5. One 2005 Formula 330 Sun Sport boat, with
dual Volvo 8.1 liter engines;

6. An 18K yellow gold midsize, Oyster Perpetual
Datejust, automatic movement, wristwatch with
a white dial, fluted bezel 31mm in size, and
an 18K yellow gold President bracelet;

7. One ladies' 18K yellow gold diamond flower
ankle bracelet designed by Judith Ripka;

8. One 18K white gold diamond and yellow
sapphire ankle bracelet;

9. One 18K yellow gold, rose quartz, crystal and
pink sapphires in a long 32 inch necklace
designed by Judith Ripka;
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10. One ladies' 18K yellow gold solid link
bracelet designed by Verdura;

11. One 18K yellow gold diamond Bvlgari flexible
wrap ring;

12. One 18K yellow and white gold Buccellati
snowflake band ring;

13. One 18K yellow gold wide Elizabeth Gage
purple sapphire wedding band;

14. One pair of 18K yellow gold circle earrings
with round diamonds designed by Judith Ripka;

15. One pair of 18K yellow gold diamond and
quartz ball earrings;

16. One yellow gold bangle bracelet, "rigator"
engraved, decorated with rhomb and triangular
blue and green enameled motifs, further
enhanced with "ornatine" engraving;

17. One ladies' platinum diamond necklace with
heart-shaped solitaire;

18. One Bvlgari colored stone bracelet;

19. One ladies' Verdura three stone ring;

20. One Van Cleef & Arpels Socrate Ring in 18K
yellow gold with diamonds;

21. One Van Cleef & Arpels daphne clip in pink
sapphire and diamonds;

22. One Harry Winston Timepiece Model #200;

23. One ladies' 18K white gold diamond tube set
nine row bracelet imported from Italy;

24. One pair of 22K yellow gold hoop earrings
designed by Fern Freeman;

25. One 18K white gold blue sapphire and black
diamond band ring imported from Italy;
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26. One 18K yellow gold long chain and pearl and
peridot link necklace;

27. One pair of 18K white gold diamond hoop
earrings imported from Italy;

28. One ladies' 18K white gold very wide diamond
cuff bracelet;

29. One pair of 18K yellow gold diamond hoop
earrings imported from Italy;

30. One long chain necklace with black and white
pearls imported from Italy;

31. One pair of 18K white gold South Sea pearl
and pink tourmaline earrings;

32. One pair of 18K yellow and white gold hoops
with diamonds imported from Italy;

33. One pair of 18K white gold diamond pave
double hoop earrings imported from Italy;

34. One De Grossigono rose gold watch with
diamonds on bond galuchat strap;

35. One Fern Freeman disk necklace;

36. One Fern Freeman long chain necklace with
rectangle pieces and baby pearls;

37. One circle in circle pink gold necklace;

38. One chain of hearts with pave diamond disk
medallion;

39. One pair of hanging earrings with mint
colored stone;

40. One ladies' 18K yellow gold colored-stone
heart pendant imported from Italy;

41. One ladies' 14K yellow gold solid link
bracelet with colored stones imported from
Italy;

42. One ladies' 18K yellow gold 34-inch chain
imported from Italy;
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43. One ladies' 18K yellow gold Cartier panther
style bracelet watch, "Cougar" case;

44. One ladies' stainless steel Cartier Tank
Francaise bracelet watch;

45. One ladies' 18K white gold diamond wedding
band;

46. One 18K yellow gold dragonfly pin;

47. Three strands of green tourmaline beads with
an 18K yellow gold clasp;

48. One 18K yellow gold turquoise and ruby bead
lariet necklace;

49. One 22K yellow gold turquoise and ruby bead
necklace;

50. One three-strand citrine and pink tourmaline
bead necklace with 18K yellow gold clasp;

51. One 18K yellow gold briolette fire opal,
tourmaline necklace;

52. One two-strand necklace of aqua, citrine,
peridot and 18K yellow gold;

53. One calcedoney big chunk stone necklace;

54. One 18K yellow gold emerald and diamond
necklace;

55. One pair of 18K yellow gold Asprey sunflower
earrings;

56. One iolite and pearl necklace with heart
pearl charm;

57. One grey freshwater pearl and garnet flower
necklace;

58. One 18K white gold diamond triangle necklace
designed by Judith Ripka;

59. One ladies' stainless steel and 18K yellow
gold Cartier Santos bracelet watch;
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60. One ladies' 18K yellow gold Frank Mueller
conquistador watch;

61. One ladies' 18K white gold Frank Mueller
bracelet watch;

62. One 18K white gold diamond pave bar and
circle link bracelet;

63. One 18K yellow gold Gucci circle wedding
band;

64. One ladies' 18K yellow gold Buccellati
braided wedding band;

65. One 18K yellow gold and diamond "star"
wedding band;

66. One pair of 18K yellow gold Van Cleef &
Arpels clover earrings;

67. Two separate 22K yellow gold pink tourmaline
necklaces by Fern Freeman;

68. One 22K yellow gold pink tourmaline and
emerald bead ring;

69. One 18K white gold imported Italian diamond
choker necklace;

70. One pair of 18K white gold hoop and flower
earrings;

71. One pair of 18K white gold tiny baby hoops
with round diamonds;

72. One pair of 18K white gold circle pave stick
earrings;

73. One pair of 18K yellow gold onyx Bvlgari
earrings;

74. One pair of 18K yellow gold antique coin
earrings imported from Italy;

75. One 18K yellow gold pink and green tourmaline
bead toggle necklace;
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76. One pair of 18K yellow gold pearl and
sapphire flower earrings imported from Italy;

77. One 18K yellow gold sapphire all around
wedding band;

78. One 18K yellow gold pink sapphire all around
wedding band;

79. One 18K yellow gold band ring with one oval
sapphire;

80. One 18K white gold dome band imported from
Italy with round diamonds;

81. One Bulgari coral and onyx flip ring;

82. One turquoise and diamond ring 18K yellow
gold designed by Judith Ripka;

83. One 22K yellow gold pink quartz and pink
pearl ring;

84. One pair of 18K yellow gold opal earrings
designed by Mallory Marks;

85. One pair of 18K white gold diamond pave
huggie earrings designed by Judith Ripka;

86. One pair of 18K pink gold diamond baby hoops;

87. One pair of "dogwood" flower earrings
designed by Judith Ripka;

88. One 4mm 18K yellow gold round bangle bracelet
with pink sapphires designed by Judith Ripka;

89. One 4mm 18K yellow gold round bangle bracelet
with light green sapphires designed by Judith
Ripka;

90. One 4mm 18K yellow gold round bangle bracelet
with yellow sapphires designed by Judith
Ripka;

91. One 1.66 carat diamond Breitling watch;

92. One round pave diamond pendant on snake chain
diamond necklace;
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93. One Bvlgari rubber bracelet stainless watch;

94. One pair of Van Cleef & Arpels snowflake
pendant ear clips with diamonds;

95. Ladies' platinum and 18K yellow gold pink
sapphire and diamond ring;

96. One pair of 18K white gold diamond spiral
ball hanging earrings;

97. One men's Frank Mueller watch;

98. One men's IWC watch;

99. One men's IWC dive watch;

100. One men's Rolex watch (gold and silver);

101. One men's Rolex watch (chrome silver);

102. Gold cufflinks and studs (evil eye) (2001);

103. Unique toned silver print by Kunie Sugiura,
"Stacks Tulips A8 positive 4" (1997);

104. Charcoal and mixed media on paper by Donald
Sultan, "Untitled (Two Flowers)" (2000);

105. Cibachrome print by vik Muniz, "Quathlamba
(Frank Stella)" (1999);

106. Gelatin print by Clifford Ross, "Hurricane
III" (2000);

107. Gelatin print by Clifford Ross, "Hurricane
XVI I I" (2 002) ;

108. Lambda C print by Doug & Mike Starn, "Black
Pulse #7" (2002);

109. Alkaloid on linen by Stephen Ellis, "SELV-02
4" (2002);

110. Watercolor on paper by Eric Fischl, "Untitled
(Study for the Weight)" (1995);
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111. Black and white photograph by Hiroshi
Sugimoto, "Canton Palace" (1980);

112. India ink on paper by Al Held, AF 12, AF 19,
and AF 21 (3 works) (c. 1962);

113. Katy Grannan, "Angela," Red Hook, NY (2003);

114. Katy Grannan, "Taryn & Bird," Pinardville, NH
(2003) ;

115. Thomas Ruff, "Nude, P108" (2001);

116. Lynda Benglis, "Broadcast" (2002-03) i

117. Lisa Ruyter, "Untitled (Big Tree)" (2004) i

118. Gotz Diergarten, "Untitled (Gouville)"
(2002) ;

119. Watercolor by Malcolm Morley, "Horse and
Pony" (1983);

120. Donald Baechler, "Oligarch Agonistes #2"
(2004) ;

121. Bryan Hunt, "Rising" (2001);

122. Stephen Balkenhol, "Woman in Red Trousers"
(2002) ;

123. Christoph Steinmeyer, "Tutelsblumen" (2005);

124. Murano Glass by Jen Michael Othoniel, "Tresor
Fontaine";

125. Silkscreen on stainless steel by Roy
Lichtenstein, "Water Lilies - Blue Lilly
Pads" (1992);

126. Peter Dayton, "Apple Still Life #4 - #7"
(2003) ;

127. One Steinway piano located at 12 Michaels
Way, Westhampton Beach, New York;

128. One Steinway piano formerly located at 502
Park Avenue, New York, New York;
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129. One natural Russian sable coat with matching
hat;

130. One black and white chinchilla jacket; and

131. One Hermes bag.

Substitute Asset Provision

40. If any of the above-described forfeitable

property, as a result of any act or omission of the defendant:

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due

diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited

with, a third person;

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or

e. has been commingled with other property which

cannot be subdivided without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21,

United States Code, Section 853(p), to seek forfeiture of any

other property of the defendant up to the value of the

forfeitable property described above.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a) (1) (C);
Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p);

and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461.)
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FORFEITURE ALLEGATION
AS TO COUNT FOUR

41. As the result of committing the money laundering

offense alleged in Count Four of this Information, MARK BLOOM,

the defendant, shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to

Title 18, United States Code, Section 982, all property, real and

personal, involved in the money laundering offense and all

property traceable to such property, including but not limited to

the following:

a. At least $20 million in United States currency, in

that such sum in aggregate is property involved in the money

laundering offense or is traceable to such property; and

b. All of the defendant's right, title and

interest in the properties, numbered 1 through 131, identified in

Paragraph 39b above.

Substitute Asset Provision

42. If any of the above-described forfeitable

property, as a result of any act or omission of the defendant:

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due

diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited

with, a third person;

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the

Court;

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or
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e. has been commingled with other property which

cannot be subdivided without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 18,

United States Code, Section 982(b), to seek forfeiture of any

other property of the defendant up to the value of the

forfeitable property described above.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 982.)

LEV L. DASSIN
Acting United States Attorney
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